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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the ﬂnancia1l statements.

Empbhasis of Matter

Attention is drawn to Note 4.1(b) to the Ind AS Financial Statements that describes the uncertainty associated
with renewal of the lease of land on which one of the Company’s hospital is located in Vijayawada. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors’ report but does not include the
Ind AS financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ report (continued)

Other Information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind
AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

%
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ report (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ report (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

d)

(B)

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31
March 2020, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on
31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 4.1(b) and Note 4.25 to the
Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not
been made in these Ind AS financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year
ended 31 March 2020.
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispecialty Hospital Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ report (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231 W/ W-100024

QX

Akhil Kapadiya

Partner

Membership No.: 212991

UDIN: 20212991AAAAAQO3332

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 17 June 2020
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS financial statements

With reference to Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 1 in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of the Company on the Ind
AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we report that:

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

iii.

iv.

vi.

Vii.

details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all the

©

fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of two years. In our opinion, the
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified during
the year and no material discrepancies were observed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (Buildings on leasehold lands)
as disclosed in Note 4.1 to the Ind AS financial statements are held in the name of the Company
except in respect of the building on leasehold land located at Vijayawada having a gross book
value of Rs.690.32 lakhs and net book value of Rs. Nil as at March 31, 2020 in respect of which
the title is not in the name of the Company. Refer Note 4.1(b) to the Ind AS financial statements.

The inventory has been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stock and the book records were not material and have been appropriately dealt with in
the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered
in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’). Accordingly,
the provisions of Clauses 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section
186 of the Act in respect of investment made or loan or guarantee or security provided to the parties
covered under Section 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(v) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules prescribed
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable. As explained to us, the Company did not
have any undisputed statutory dues on account of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax and Duty of Customs. Also refer Note 4.25(c) to the Ind AS financial statements.
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS financial statements (continued)

Vili.

X1.

Xil.

Xiii.

xiv.

XV.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, there are no dues of Income tax, which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. As explained to us, the Company
did not have any statutory dues on account of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax and Duty of Customs.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or financial institution. The Company
does not have any loans or borrowings from government nor has it issued any debentures.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not
raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
term loans taken by the Company and applied during the year were for the purpose for which they
were raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read
with Schedule V to the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is not a Nidhi Company prescribed under Section 406 of the
Act. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions, have been disclosed in the Ind
AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xiv) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with them as contemplated under the provisions of Section 192 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS financial statements (continued)

xvi.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the said Order is
not applicable to the Company.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 116231 W/W-100024

Akhil Kapadiya

Partner

Membership No.: 212991

UDIN: 20212991AAAAAQ3332

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 17 June 2020
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Ind AS Financial Statements of Dr. Ramesh
Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited for the period ended 31 March 2020

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Referred to in paragraph
1(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Dr. Ramesh Cardiac
and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March
2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind
AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Ind AS Financial Statements of Dr. Ramesh
Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited for the period ended 31 March 2020

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231W/ W-100024

Akhil Kapadiya

Partner

Membership No.: 212991

UDIN: 20212991AAAAAQ3332

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 17 June 2020



Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Dalance Shect as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Notes As al As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4.1 9,623 87 10,264.04
Intangible assets 4,2 3894 1733
Right-of-use assets 4.3 3,01842 -
Financial assets
Invesiments 4.4 3,031.07 3,002.85
Other financial assets 4.5 23338 198.66
Deferred tax assets 4.6 739.71 589.58
Other tax assels 2,014.91 1,526.13
Other non-current asseis 4.7 13.00 113.85
Total non-current assets 18,713.30 15,712.44
Current assets
Inventories 4.8 663.23 54338
Financial assels
Investments 4.4 1,154 65 23254
Trade receivables 4.9 2,651 65 2,805.64
Cash and cash equivalents 4.[0 41911 56.12
Other financial assets 4.5 22250 23728
Other current assets 4.7 161.56 253.10
Total current assets 5,272.70 4,128.06
TOTAL ASSETS 23,986.00 19,840.50
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equily share capital 4.11 1,078.58 1,078 58
Other equity 4.12 10,562.58 10,858.71
‘Total equity L6416 11,937.29
LIABILITIES
Nou-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4,13 3,660 13 3,824 96
Lease liabilities 4,27 4,024 72 -
Other financial Liabilities 4.16 2073 -
Provisions 4.14 174.17 207.15
Total non-current liabilities 7,879.75 4,032.01
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4.13 . 91.53
Lease liabilities 4.27 132.45 -
Trade payables 4.15
- Total outstanding dues of micro small and médium - -
enterprises
- Tolal outstanding dues other than micro small and medium 1,824.85 1,776 0
enterprises
Other financial liabilities 4.16 2,146.91 1,549.94
Provisions 4.14 139.52 75.64
Other current liabililies 4.17 221.36 377.08
Total current liabilities 4,465.09 3,871.10
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 23,986.00 19,840.50
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Inil AS Financial Statements
As per our report of even dale attached
for BSR & Associates LLP Jorand behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Acconntants Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
ICAI Firm regisgation number: 11623 | W/W-100024 CIN: U73100AP1995PRC020491

snesh Baby Mvr. M.S.Rama Mohan Rae

Partner Managing Diiechin Chairman and Director
Membership No. 212991 DIN: 01879436 DIN: 02356742

CA.P. Ravi Kirun

CIFO & Whole-Time Director
DIN: 05116806

A .‘\\é

Place: Hyderabad Place: Vijayawada

Date: |7 jwntlolo Date : 9’8 MO'JB AOAD



Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Not For the year ended For the year ended
b 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Income
Revenue from operations 4.18 21,437.95 20,841.66
Other income 4.19 2995 4249
Total income 21,467.90 20,884.15
Expenses
Purchase of medicines and consumables 4.20 (a) 5,120.06 5,249.60
Change in inventories 4,20 (b) (119.85) (37.79)
Employee benefits expense 4.21 6,050.19 5874.15
Finance costs 422 88725 53498
Depreciation and amortisation expense 423 1,479.29 1,294.78
Other expenses 4.24 7.306.17 7.276.41
Total expenses 20,723.11 20,192.13
Profit before tax 744.79 692,02
Tax expense
Current tax 4.6 156.54 168 76
Deferred tax 4.6 137.77 (149.45)
Profit for the year 450,48 672,71
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit (liability)/ asset 539 (4183)
Income tax in relation to above item (1 40} 10 88
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income-tax 399 (30.96)
Total comprehensive income for the year 454.47 641.75
Earnings per equity share (par value of INR 10 each)
Basic 426 418 624
Diluted 4.26 418 624
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Ind AS Financial Statements
As per our repott of even date attached
for B S R & Associates LLP Jorand behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants : Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Iospital Private Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 116231 W/W-100024 CIN: U73100AP1995PRC020491
v
AR Kapadiya Dr. P. Ramesh !l-rm‘l'/-") Mr. M.S.Rama Mohan Rao
Dlartner Managing Director Chairman and Director
Membership No. 212991 DIN: 01879436 DIN: 02356742
Plows
LK
CA.P. Ravi Kiran S.Nag ) f
CFO & Whole-Time Director Comyps ecttily
DIN: 05116806 Memberglitdo. ATF490
Place: Hyderabad Place: Vijayawada

Date: \ Yung QOO Date:: o Q Mcv& QOO



Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amouuts arc in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Cash llow from operating activities

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Profit before tax 744.79 692.02
Adjustments for operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,479.29 1,294.78
Provision for discounts, disallowances & doubtful debts 164.54 113.70
Bad debts written off 43.12 45.51
Finance cost 887.25 534,98
Gain on sale of mutual funds (9.62) (4.82)
Financial assets at FVTPL - Net change in fair value (1.94) (0.98)
Interest income (6.22) (1.62)
Unwinding of discount on Security deposits (6.70) (31.09)
(Profit) / loss on sale of fixed assets - (1.16)
Guarantee commission income (1.67) .
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,292.84 2,641.31
Adjustments:
Inventories (119.85) (37.79)
Trade receivables (53.66) (542.54)
Other financial assets 29.80 (20.42)
Other current assets 179.77 (73.89)
Trade payables 4794 219.53
Other financial liabilities 167.81 (120.08)
Provisions 30.90 108,12
Other current liabilities (155.73) 40,03
Cash generated from operations 3,419.82 2,214.28
Income taxes paid {net} (644.75) (696.28)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 2,775.07 1,518.00
B. Cash flow from investing activitics
Investment in subsidiaries and associates - (2,977.35)
Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (592.04) (369.80)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1.40 3.83
Sale proceeds / (purchases) of investments (910.54) 2,241.93
Investment in margin deposits (27.50) -
Interest received 6.17 7.03
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (1,522.51) (1,094.36)
C. Cash flow from financing activitics
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,052.05 808.14
Repayment of long term borrowings (856.96) (978.54)
Proceeds/(repayment) of short term borrowings (net) (91.53) 246.94
Payment of lease liabilities (376.99) -
Finance cost (524.61) (534.20)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (798.04) (457.66)
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 454,52 (34.02)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (3541) (1.39)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note: 4.10) 41911 (3541
* Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Particulars As at Cash flow changes Non-cash changes As at
01 April 2019 31 March 2020
Long-term borrowings 4,661.95 (6.05) 4,857.05
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 33.19 42.76
Bank balances
- in current accounts 385.92 13.36
Cash and cash equiy 419.11 56.12
& (91.53)
419.11 (35.41)




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note:

a) The above standalone cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) - Statement of
Cash Flows.

b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of’

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Balances with banks:
- In current accounts 385.92 13.36
Cash on hand 33.19 42.76
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 419.11 56.12
As per our report of even date attached
Jor BS R & Associates LLP Jor and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
ICALI Finn registration number; 11623 1W/W-100024 CIN: U73100AP1995PRC020491
Akhil Kapadiyn Dr. P. Ram nhu Mr. M.S.Rama Mohan Rao
Partner Managing Director Chairman and Director
Membership No. 212991 DIN: 01879436 DIN: 02356742

CA.P. Ravi Kiran S. Nagendygd Igpfhar

CFO & Whole-Time Director Company Sglrehiry

DIN: 05116806 Membersjfp No. A33490
Place: Hyderabad Place: Vijayawada
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital

Note Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2018 10,785,825 1,078.58
Changes in equity share capital during 2018-19 4.11 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 10,785,825 1,078.58
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 4.11 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 10,785,825 1,078.58

(3) Other equity

Other equity

Reserves and Surplus

Total attributable to

Particulars Capital redemption owners of the
. reserve company
Securities premium Retained earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2018 7,454.54 2,762.42 - 10,216.96
Profit for the year - 672.71 - 672,71
Re-measurement of net defined benefit plans, net of tax - (30.96) - (30.96)
Redemption of preference share capital - (40.00) 40.00 -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 7,454.54 3,364.17 40.00 10,858.71
Balance as at 1 April 2019 7,454.54 3,364.17 40.00 10,858.71
Impact on account of transition to Ind AS 116, net of deferred tax of
Rs. 289.30 (Refer note 4.27) (750.60) z (750.60)
Profit for the year - 450.48 450.48
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax - 3.99 - 3.99
Balance as at 31 March 2020 7,454.54 3,068.04 40.00 10,562.58

The notes referred above form an integral part of the Ind AS Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

Jor BS R & Associates LLP
Chariered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 116231W/W-100024

AKhil Kapadiya
Partner
Membership No. 212991

Place: Hyderabad
Date: |\ Ty 2020

Jor and behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
CIN: U73100AP1995PRC020491

Dr. P. lel(mﬁ;:’/

Managing Director
DIN: 1879436

Plaw Join—

CA.P. Ravi Kiran

CFO & Whole-Time Director

DIN: 5116806

Place: Vijayawada

Date : 9—8 N\o_a Ao

st—al 2>

Mr. M.S.Rama Mohan Rao

Chairman and Director
DIN: 02356742

S.Nagendry Kupiar
Company spatélary
Membaer

Place: Vijayawada

P No. A33490

Date: 2.8 Nbr-a 2020




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

1. Reporting Entity
Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited (the ‘Company) is a Company
domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh. The Company is
engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services, participating in clinical studies and
conducting training programs and services primarily in Vijayawada and Guntur. Aster DM Healthcare
Limited is the Holding Company.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS”) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and other relevant provision of the Act under the historical cost
convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values,
notified under the Act and Rules prescribed thereunder.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Director on 28 May 2020.
Details of the accounting policies of the Company are included in Note 3.
2.2 Functional and presentation currency

The Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded off to nearest lakhs except share data or as otherwise stated.

2.3 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost basis except for the
following items:

Items Measurement Basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair Value
Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations

Net defined benefit (asset)/liability

2.4 Use of judgments, estimates and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods affected.




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

2.4 Use of judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Information about judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant effects
on the amount recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 4.1 and 4.2 - measurement of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets;

- Note 4.5 —recognition of deferred tax asset: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used;

- Note 4.24 —recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

- Note 4.28- measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 4.37 — Impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets;

- Note 4.3 & 4.27 — determination of the lease term and whether the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise extension options or not.

2.5 Measurement of fair values

2.6

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels
in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

Note 4.37 - financial instruments

Change in significant accounting policies

The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases from 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach,
under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognised in opening retained earnings at |
April 2019. Accordingly, the comparative information presented is not restated i.e. it is presented, as
previously reported, under Ind AS 17. The details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed
below.




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation
2.6 Change in significant accounting policies (continued)
i.  Definition of lease

Previously, the Company determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or contains a lease
under Ind AS 17. Under Ind AS 116, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition of a lease, as explained in Note 3.1(i). On transition to Ind AS 116, the Company
elected to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.
It applied Ind AS 116 only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not
identified as leases under Ind AS 17 were not reassessed for whether there is a lease. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under Ind AS 116 was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after
1 April 2019.

ii. As a lessee

As a lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its
assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset to the Company. Under Ind AS 116, the Company recognises right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases — i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet. The Company
decided to apply recognition exemptions to short-term leases. At transition, lease liabilities were
measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at their carrying amount as if Ind
AS 116 had been applied since the commencement date, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Company used the following practical expedients when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously
classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17.
- Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
- Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than
12 months of lease term.
- Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.
- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The lease payments for operating leases as per Ind AS 17 Leases, were earlier reported under cash
flow from operating activities. The cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liability and
its related interest is classified within financing activities. Payments for short-term leases, leases of
low-value assets and variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability are
presented within operating activities.




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current —non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
- itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in the Company’s normal
operating cycle;
- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
- itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
- itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
- itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
- itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.
Deferred tax assets are classified as non-current assets.

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents.

b. Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rated if exchange prevailing on the dates of the
respective transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the
year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are
translated at the closing exchange rated on that date, the resultant exchange differences are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on
historical cist in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

C.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or
levies, freight, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use and estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted
in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible fixed asset are
added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset.

Capital work in progress

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work-in-
progress. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are
disclosed as other non-current assets.

Depreciation and amortisation

Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. The cost of
tangible fixed assets comprises the purchase price, non-refundable taxes, duties, freight (net of rebates
and discounts) and any other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition
for their intended use.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible fixed assets are added to its book value only if
they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance.

The cost of tangible fixed assets under construction/acquired but not ready for their intended use as at
the balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Indirect expenditure including
borrowing cost to the extent incidental to construction of tangible fixed asset is disclosed under
expenditure during construction and will be allocated to fixed assets on being put to use.

Tangible fixed assets other than leaschold improvements and buildings on leasehold land are
depreciated at the useful lives specified in Schedule I1 of the Companies Act, 2013 using straight-line
method as in the opinion of the management the same reflects the estimated useful life. Leasehold
improvements and buildings on lease hold land are amortised on straight line method over the primary
period of lease or estimated useful life whichever is lower. Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis
from/upto the date the assets are purchased / sold.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted appropriately.

‘hecost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale
Hspysition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the stz}lgl'ilté_i1ﬁ;ﬂ}‘fp:§l"|l and
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Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

C.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Depreciation and amortisation (continued)

There are no parts to the asset, which are significant to total cost of the asset and useful life of that parts
of the asset is not different from the useful life of the remaining asset. Hence, no useful life of those
particular parts is determined separately. Losses arising from retirement, gains or losses arising from
disposal of fixed assets measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

d. Intangible assets and Amortisation

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for cost of acquisition or development less
accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of an internally
generated asset comprises all expenditure that can be directly attributed, or allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis, to create, produce and make the asset ready for its intended use. Intangible assets
under development are capitalized only if the Company is able to establish control over such assets and
expects future economic benefit will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life, from the date that they are available for
use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the asset.

Gains or losses arising from decommissioning of an intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Computer software is amortized on straight line basis over their estimated useful life of four years.
Inventories

The inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical equipments are valued at lower of cost or
net realizable value. In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale, the net realizable value is the selling price. The comparison of cost and net
realizable is made on an item by item basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for Goods
and Service tax wherever applicable, applying the first in first out method.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and other benefits.

The undiscounted amount of short -term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services are recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

f. Employee benefits (continued)

Post-employment benefits

i

ii.

wil,

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company
makes specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance to
Government administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution
plan. The Company’s contributions are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

In accordance with the applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, defined benefit
retirement plan (“the Gratuity plan”) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity plan provides a
lump-sum payment to eligible employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment.

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan
is performed periodically by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India (Group Gratulty
Scheme). Re -measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI). The
Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of
the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes as
a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognizes
gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or
settlement occurs. When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensate absences. The employees can carry

forward a portion of the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future

perlods or encase the leaves during the period of employment or retirement or at termination of
i gmployment. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in | the purlod in which
i 10Le*11ployee renders the services that increases this entitlement. ,fé;_'.n‘n.iy /{G




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
f. Employee benefits (continued)
Post-employment benefits (continued)

ii. Defined benefit plans (continued)

Compensated absences

The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that
the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of
the reporting period. The Company recognises accumulated compensated absences based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Non-accumulating compensated absences
are recognised in the period in which the absences occur. The Company recognises actuarial gains
and losses immediately in the other comprehensive income.

g. Revenue
Revenue from contract with customers
The Company generates revenue from rendering of medical and healthcare services, sale of medicines
and other operating avenues. Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It
replaced IAS 18 Revenue, 1AS 11 Construction Contracts.
Disaggregation of revenue
The Company disaggregates revenue from hospital services (medical and healthcare services), sale of
medicines, clinical and market studies and other operating income. The Company believes that this
disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of Company’s revenues
and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Contract balances

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for sale of services as trade receivables,
advance consideration as advance from customers.

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. The following details
provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in
contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition
policies.




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

g.

Revenue recognition (continued)
a. Medical and healthcare services

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital
services,

Revenue from hospital services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related services are
rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the
services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date
to the extent of the services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts and concessions given
to the patients.

Unbilled revenue represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the
patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the
balance sheet date.

b. Sale of medicines

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and medicines within the hospital premises is recognised
when property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to
the customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will
be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection. The amount of revenue recognised
is net of sales returns, taxes and duties, wherever applicable.

¢. Revenue from clinical and market studies and canteen sales

The Company’s revenue from other operating income comprises of income from clinical and market
studies, training/courses and canteen sales (sales of food and beverages).

Revenue from services rendered in based on the agreements/arrangements with the customers as the
service is performed. Income from training/courses in recognised over a period of time as these are
conducted. Income from sale of food and beverages is recognised at a point in time when control of
the assets is transferred.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance
income in the statement of profit and loss.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases as a lessee
Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116. This policy is
applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 April 2019. At inception or on reassessment
of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of
land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-
use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property,
plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.

Policy applicable before 1 April 2019

A}é&!\ acquired under leases other than f'nance leases are classified as operating leases. The total lease
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
j-  Taxation

[ncome tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. Income tax expenses are
recognized in statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) or directly in equity.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantially enacted by the reporting dates.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the assets and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable protit may not be available. Therefore, in case of history of recent losses, the Company
recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which deferred
tax asset can be realized.




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

j»

Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax asset-unrecognized or recognized are reviewed at each reporting date and they are
recognized/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in
India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against
future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet
when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated
with the asset will be realized.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated. Bank overdrafts are classified as part of cash and cash equivalent, as they form an integral
part of an entity’s cash management.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the
year relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity
shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit
per share.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized
as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
2 f the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,
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Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

n.

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the
expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use is capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and:
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial Assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or
- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL.:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 5.d§|'l ﬂow&thal are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount uulsmmlmg - 4




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

p. Financial instruments (continued)
ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as
FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
cost the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
~swh Th Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks dnd,u.w‘lrds 01 owncrshlp
g and d\%\ul retain control of the financial asset. > SN
-5
&)




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
p. Financial instruments (continued)

iii. Derecognition (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(. Impairment
i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- abreach of contract;
- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

.0ss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetin ne expected
it losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result fj qmtl '
ult events over the expected life of a financial instrument.




Dr.Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

q.

Impairment (continued)
i. Impairment of financial instruments (continued)

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not
generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the
higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on thc estimated
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lacs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

3.1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

q.

Impairment (continued)
ii. Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which
the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company
reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss has been recognised.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial guarantee

In a financial guarantee, where the parent company has provided guarantee to its subsidiaries, the
Company treats the fair value of the guarantee as a deemed equity infusion at the time of initial
recognition and subsequently recognises the guarantee premium as income over the period of the
guarantee.

Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2020.
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.2 Intangibles assets
B. Reconciliation of the carrying amount

Particulars Software Total

Gross cost /Deemed cost

Balance at 1 April 2018 68,84 68.84
Additions 7.11 7.11
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2019 : 75.95 75.95
Balance at 1 April 2019 75.95 75.95
Additions 3594 3594
Disposals (4.05) (4.05)
Balance at 31 March 2020 107.84 107.84

Accumulated amortisation

Balance at 1 April 2018 39.82 39.82
Amortisation for the year 18.80 18.80
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2019 58.62 58.62
Balance at 1 April 2019 58.62 58.62
Aumortisation for the year 13.67 13.67
Disposals (3.39) (3.39)
Balance at 31 March 2020 68.90 68.90

Net Carrying amounts
As at 31 March 2020 38.94 38.94
As at 31 March 2019 17.33 17.33




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.3 Right-of-use assets
B. Reconciliation of the carrying amount

Particulars Leasehold lands Total
Carrying Amount

Balance at 1 April 2019 (on transition) 3,093.10 3,093.10
Additions 117.58 117.58
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2020 3,210.68 3,210.68
Accumulated amortisation

Balance at 1 April 2019 - -
Amortisation for the year 19225 192.25
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2020 192.25 192.25
Net Carrying amounts

As at 31 March 2020 3,018.42 3.018.42




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.4 Investments
Non-current

In subsidiaries at cost

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Unquoted equity instrument, refer note i below 2,915.11

Deemed investment, Corporate financial guarantee, refer note ii below 2821 2,943.32 2,915.10

Unquoted capital contribution, refer note iii below 4775 47.75

Unquoted capital contribution, refer note iv below 40.00 40.00
3,031.07 3,002.85

Note:
i) On 1 April, 2018, the Company had entered into a share purchase agreement with the Key Promotor Group and the Remaining Shareholders
Group of Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited (SHPL) and acquired 51% stake in SHPL

i) The Company has given a corporate guarantee to a bank towards a loan taken by its subsidiary Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited. The
outstanding loan in the books of subsidiary as at balance sheet date is Rs 914.04 (PY: Nil).

iii) On March 25, 2018, the Company had entered into an agreement with Dr.N.Sashidhar to establish and register a limited liabilily partnership
under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008 in the name of "Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP" with an initial capital contribution to be made upto
Rs. 100 in the ratio of 51:49 respectively. The Company’s contribution amounts to Rs. 47.75 as of March 31 2020 (PY Rs. 47.75) and Dr
N.Sashidhar has contributed Rs. 25 (PY Rs. 25) as at 31 March 2020. Also refer Note 4.5

iv) On December 28, 2018, the Company entered into an agrecment with Dr.Swapna Srinath to establish and register a limited liability
partnership under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008 in the name of "Komali Fertility Centre LLP". The Company has coutributed an
amount of Rs. 40 as at 31 March 2020 (PY Rs. 40). Similar contribution has been made by Dr. Swapna Srinath as at 31 March 2020

v) The above investments have been elected to be accounted at cost by the Company, per Ind AS 27 "Separate Financial Statements”

vi) Though Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP, Sanghamitra Hospitals Private limited and Komali Fertility Centre LLP are subsidiaries of the Company,
pursuant to provision of Rule 6 (iii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 there was a special resolution passed by the Company, by which the
Company opted not to prepare the consolidated financial statement, since the holding company, Aster DM Healthcare Limited prepares the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 which includes financial statements of these entities

As at
31 March 2020

As at
Current 31 March 2019

Investment in Mutual Funds - Quoted investments (non- trade at fair value through profit or loss)

Reliance Liquid Fund - Direct Growth - 180.22
Reliance Equity Hybrid Fund- Segregated Portfolio-1 0.05 -
Reliance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan 288.54 -
Nippon India Money Market Fund INF204K01ZP3 786.03 .
Nippon India Overnight Fund- Direct Growth Plan 80.03 -

Reliance regular savings fund - Balanced plan - 52.32

1,154.65 232.54

Aggregate book value of quoted investments 1,154.65 232,54

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 1,154.65 232.54
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - -
- \?:31".‘\.(%5/) :
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued) .
(All amounts in Indian rupees Lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at As at
4.5 Other financial assets 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Security deposits
- to related parties (refer Note: 4.36) 69.86 71.02
- to parties other than related parties 23.08 7.03
other deposits
- to parties other than related parties 95.27 102.99
188.21 181.04
(b) Deposits
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months from reporting date (refer i below) 43.00 15.50
Interest accrued but not due on deposits maturing after 12 months from reporting date 2.17 2.12
45.17 17.62
233.38 198.66
Note:

i. Includes margin money deposits of Rs. 43.00 (PY: Rs. 15.50) against Bank guarantees issued by banks, which are lien marked with
Government authorities,

As at As at
Current 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Unsecured, considered good
Contract assets - unbilled revenue 124.06 14991
Advances towards capital contribution in Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP 31.01 12.00
Advance to employees 66.36 74.30
Other advances recoverable in cash or kind 1.07 1.07
222.50 237.28
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Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.6 Other tax assets

(A)
@

(ii)

(B)

(&}

(D)

Income tax
Amount recognised in the stat t of profit & loss
For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current tax 156.54 168.76
Deferred tax 137.77 (149.45)
Tax expense for the year 294.31 19.31
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

For the Year ended 31 March 2020 For the Year ended 31 March 2019

Tax Tax
Beft fT: Net of T
efore tax benefit/(expense) Net of Tax Before tax benefit/(expense) Net of Tax

Re-measurement on defined benefit (liability)/assets 5.39 (1.40) 399 (41.83) 10.88 (30.95)

5.39 (1.40) 3.99 (41.83) 10.88 (30.95)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Profit before lax 744.79 692.02
Tax using enacted tax rate applicable to the Company 20720 178.19
Tax effect of
Deduction for capital expendilure w/s 35 AD of Income Tax Act (89.02) (58.48)
Income not subject Lo tax 1.47 (8.30)
Impact of deferred tax not recognized in earlier years 116,29 (90.54)
Donation u/s 80G (1.40) (1.16)
Others 59.77 (0.42)
Income tax expense 29431 1931
Effective tax rate 39.52% 2.79%

The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (‘Ordinance’) was promulgated by the President of India on 20 September 2019, The Ordinance has amended the Income Tax Act,
1961 and Finance Act, 2019 to inter-alia provide an option to a domestic company to pay income tax at reduced rate of 22%. The Company has elected not to exercisc this option to pay
income tax at a reduced rate of 22%. Accordingly, the Company has recognised, provision for income tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 based on earlier income tax provisions ie
higher of income tax as per the normal provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and Minimum Altermnate Tax

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Particulars Balance as at 1 Recognised Recognised in Recognised Balance as at 31
April 2019 through retained Statement of Profit  through other March 2020
earnings and Loss comprehensive
income

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) in relation to:
MAT credit entitlement 566.49 - 11223 678.72
Lease liabilities, impact on account of transition to Ind 1,127 .31 29.00 - 1.156.31
AS 116 (refer note 4.27)
Right-of-use assets, impact on account of transition to Ind (83801) (2.00) - (840.01)
AS 116 (refer note 4.27)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels - - (525 00) - (525.00)
Trade receivables (loss allowances) - - 111.50 - 111.50
Provision for employec benefits 23.09 - 13650 (1.40) 158.19
Total deferred tax asset/(liability) 589 58 289.30 (137.77) (1.40) 739.71

Balance as at 1 Recognised Recognised in Recognised Balance as at 31

April 2018 through retained Statement of Profit  through other March 2019
earnings and Loss comprehensive
income

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) in relation to:
MAT credit entitlement 417.04 14945 - 566.49
Provision for employee bencfits 1221 - 10.88 23.09
Total deferred tax asset/(liability) 42925 - 14945 10 88 589.58

Deferred tax assets not recognised on grounds of prudence

Particulars

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Gross amount

Deferred tax

Gross amount

Deferred tax

On account of unabsorbed losses and depreciation

1,337.07 |

453.88

Total

1;337,07 ;

453.88
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4.6 Other tax assets (continued)

(E) Tax Losses

|Particulars Halance as at 31 March 2020 Balance as at 31 March 2019

Tax loss Expire Tax loss Expire
Unabsorbed Capital Expenditure u/s 35AD - Infinite 1,377.07 Infinite
Taotal - 1,377.07
Deferred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilities have becn offset wh the has a legally cnfc ble right to set off current tax asscts against current tax liabilitics and

where the deferred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilitics relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. Significant is required in d g
provision for income tax, deferred income tax assels and liabilitics and recoverability of deferred income 1ax asscts The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on
estimates of taxable income by each jurisdiction in which the relevant entity operates and the period over which deforred income lax asscts will be recovercd
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As at As at
31 Mar 2020 31 March 2019
4.7 Other assets
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 13.00 2563
Prepaid expenses - 88.22
13.00 113.85
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses 4372 6533
Advances to vendors 63.51 13037
Other assets 54.33 57.40
161.56 253.10
174.56 366.95
As at As at
31 Mar 2020 31 March 2019
4.8 Inventories
Pharmacy medicines 663 23 543.38
fvalued at lower of cost or net realisable value) 663.23 543.38
# For details of inventories hypothecated, refer Note 4.13
As at As at
31 Mar 2020 31 March 2019
4.9 Trade receivables
Current
Unsecured
- Considered good 2,651 65 2,805.64
- Considered doubtful 401 64 27996
- Significant increase in credit risk
- Credit impaired - -
3,053 29 3,085 60
Less: Provision for Impairment (401 64) (279.96)
Net trade receivables 2,651.65 2,805.64
The Company's exposure to credit risk and loss allowance related to trade receivables is disclosed in Note 4 38
For details of net trade receivables hypothecated refer Note 4 13
As at As at
31 Mar 2020 31 March 2019
4.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 33.19 42.76
Balance with banks
- 1n current accounts 38592 13.36

Cash and Cash equivalents 419.11 56.12
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As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
4.11 Share capital Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (with voting rights) 11,000,000 1,100 00 11,000,000 1,100.00
11,000,000 1,100.00 11,000,000 1,100.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each (with voting rights) 10,785,825 1,078 58 10,785,825 1,078.58
10,785,825 1,078.58 10,785,825 1,078.58
(a) Reconciliation of equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
loquity shares of Rs. 10 each (with voting rights) _
At the beginning of the year 10,785,825 1,078 58 10,785,825 1,078 58
Add: issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 10,785,825 1,078.58 10,785,825 1,078.58

Terms and rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs 10/- each. Each holder of equity share is entitled to onc vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividends in [ndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(b) Shares held by ultimate holding company/holding company and their subsidiaries/associates

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Iquity shares with voting rights
Aster DM Healthcare Limited, the holding company 5,500,771 550.08 5,500,771 550.08
(c)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
Equity shares with voting rights
Aster DM Healthcare Limited 5,500,771 51.00% 5,500,771 51 00%
Dr. P. Ramesh Babu 2,924,404 27.11% 2,924,404 27.11%
P. Mahalakshmi 900,000 8.34% 900,000 834%
P. Raja Nishanth 595,000 5.52% 595,000 552%
P. Madhusmitha 581,500 5.39% 581,500 539%
(d) Details of buyback, bonus shares, issue for consideration other than for cash for past 5 years

During the five financial years ended 31 March 2020, no shares have been issued for consideration other than cash and no shares have been bought back
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As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
4.12 Other equity
Securities premium:
Balance at the beginning of the year 7.454.54 7,454.54
Additions during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 7,454.54 7,454.54

Security premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. [t is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013

As at As at
Retained earnings 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 3.364.17 2,762.42
Impact on account of transition to Ind AS 116, net of deferred tax of Rs. 289.30 (Refer note 4.27) (750.60) -
Profit for the year 450.48 672.71
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation, net of tax 3.99 (30.96)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve - (40.00)
Balance at the end of the year 3,068.04 3,364.17

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders.

Remeasurcments of Net Defined Benefit Plans: Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually achieved, and any
changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experiecnce adjustments within the plans, are recognised in ‘Other
comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss

As at As at
Capital redemption reserve 31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 40.00 -
Additions during the year - 40.00
Balance at the end of the year 40.00 40.00

Capital redemption reserve was created for redemption of preference shares and the balance represents the unutilised amount after complete
redemption of the same.
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As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
4.13 Borrowings
Non-current
Secured loans
Term loans from banks, refer note 1 331743 3,040.15
Equipment loans from financial institutions, refer note 2 27068 746.76
Vehicle loans, refer note 3 42.02 805
Unsecured loans
11% non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference shares, refer note 4 30.00 30.00
3,660.13 3,824.96
Current
Secured loans from banks
Balances with banks in overdraft account - 91.53

Details of securities, terms and conditions on loans

1. Term loan from banks

HDFC Bank:

Represents Term loan of Rs 4,800 (PY: Rs. 3,800) with outstanding balance of Rs 4,015.06 (PY: Rs 3,432.17) is to be re-paid in monthly
installments ranging from 75 to 84 months based on the repayment schedule provided by the bank commencing from 01 December 2016. The rate
of interest charged by the bank ranged from 8.95% to 9.25% (PY: 9.20% to 9.80%)

Primary Security: Equitable mortgage of lease hold rights on 304,302 47 Sq  Ft built up areas (3 cellars + Ground+ 8 floors) on subleased land of
4,628 77 sq. feets site in survey no. 1072, T S.0:247/248, Ward no |7, Nagarampalem, Guntur
Secondary Security: Hypothecation of stock and book debts less than 180 days. Margins on stock and book debts are 25%

2. Equipment Loans from financial institutions

a. De Lage Landen Financial Services India (Private) Limited

Various Equipment loans amounting to Rs. 2,114 (PY: Rs. 2,114.00) having balance outstanding as on balance sheet date Rs. 754.70 (PY: Rs
1,182.56) is to be re-paid in monthly installments ranging from 59 to 84 months with interest rate ranging from 7.57% p.ato 1125% pa (PY
7.57% to 11.25 %) based on the repayment schedule provided by the financial institution. The loans are secured by hypothecation of equipment's
procured from the said loans and also secured by personal guarantees of promoter directors

3. Vehicle Loans

Vehicle loans amounting to Rs. 89 26 (PY: Rs 61 .95) having balance outstanding as on balance sheet date Rs. 57.29 (PY: Rs. 17.23) is to be re-
paid in equal monthly installments ranging from 37 to 60 months with interest rate ranging from 8 70% p.a to 9 80% p.a (PY 9.25% to 9 80 %) and
is secured by hypothecation of vehicles financed by the bank

4. 11% non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference shares ('RPS') :

Authorized preference share capital is Rs. 1,000 lakhs with face value of each share is Rs. 100

30,000 redeemable preference shares having face value of Rs 100 each carrying a fixed dividend of 11% p a issued by the Company. RPS is
redeemable at par upon maturity, which is twelve years from the date of allotment with the Company having an option to redeem the RPS at any
time Holders of RPS are not entitled to any voting rights
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4.14

4.16

4.17

Provisions

Non-current

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity ( refer Note: 4.29)
Compensated absences

Current
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity
Compensated absences

Total provisions

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro small and medium enterprises (refer note 4 30)
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro small and medium

enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Non-current
Deferred guarantee commission

Current

Current maturities of long-term borrowings
[nterest accrued but not due on borrowings
Dividend on redeemable preference shares
Dues to creditors for capital goods
Accrued salaries and benefits

Payables to related parties (refer note 4.36)
Deferred guarantee commission

Other payables

Other current liabilities
Current

Advances received from customers
Statutory dues payables

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

174.17 105 88
- 101.27
174.17 207.15
4516 4173
94 36 3391
139.52 75.64
313.68 282.79
As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,824 85 1.776 91
1,824.85 1,776.91
As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

20.73 -
2073 -
1,196 92 836.99

2609 2788
5.92 590

160.01 94 80

58945 44770
4.04 802
581 -

158.67 128 65

2,146.91 1,549.94

As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

8114 187.50
140.22 185.58
221.36 377.08




Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4.18

4.20
(a)
(b)

4.21

Revenue from operations

Revenue from hospital services
Revenue from pharmacy and others
Revenue from clinical & market studies
Revenue from canteen sales and others

Reconciliation of revenue from hospital services with the contracted prices
Gross Revenue
Less: discounts, disallowances etc

Other income

Interest income

- from banks

- from others

Unwinding of discount on Security deposils

Gain on sale of mutual funds

Financial assels al FVTPL - Net change in fair value
Net gain on sale of property, plant & equipment
Guarantee commission income

Miscellaneous income

Cost of materials consumed in relation to Medical and Pharmacy and Change in inventory
Purchase of medicines and consumables

Change in inventories

Opening stock

Less: Closing stock, refer note 4 8

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus*

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note: 4.29)
Expenses related to gratuity (refer note: 4,29)

Staff welfare expense

* Amount is net of recoveries towards certain expenses

Finance cost

Interest expense on borrowings from banks

[nterest expense on borrowings from financial institutions

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Other borrowing cost

Dividend on redeemable preference shares classified as financial liability, measured at amortised cost
(including dividend distribution tax)

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation on tangible assets
Amortisation on intangible assets
Amortisation on Right-of-use assets

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

18,327.38 17,881.64
242872 2,258.15
205.54 288.03
476 31 413.84
21,437.95 20,841.66
18,741.40 18,344.20
(414.02) (462 56)
18,327.38 17,881.64

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

622 094
. 068
6.70 31.09
9.62 482
194 098
. 1.16
167 -
3.80 2.82
29.95 42.49

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

5,120.06 5,249.60
54338 505 59
(663.23) (543 38)
(119.85) (37.79)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

5,601 55 537498
33537 377.89
8211 77.69
31.16 43.60
6,050.19 5.874.15

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

34339 35896
79.19 111.02
364.42 -
96.26 59.10
3.99 590
887.25 534.98

For the year ended
3{ March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

1,273.37 1,27598

1367 18.80
192.25 .

1,479.29 1,294.78
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
4.24 Other expenses
Consultancy charges 4,403 72 4,359.66
Power and fuel 527 86 47740
Catering and patient welfare expenses 37853 413.84
Rent (refer note: 4 27) 50.43 410.41
Hospital maintenance 22306 242.60
Advertisement expenses 19795 187 41
GST Input ineligible 207 14 181.60
Service contract charges 227.49 144.99
Bad debts wntten off 4312 4551
Provision for discounts, disallowances & doubtful debts 164 54 11370
Printing and stationery 121.60 118.07
Legal and professional charges 100 94 107 36
Repair and maintenance
- Medical equipment 39.68 27.56
- Hospital building 30.76 684
- Computers 9.88 546
- Others 86.50 3970
Vehicle maintenance 68 13 67.55
Travelling expenses 5700 6276
Telephone charpes 5742 60.49
Rates and taxes 84 25 6172
Insurance 35.61 24.02
Corporate Social Responsibility {refer note: 4.31) 10 00 12.11
Donations 5.05 9.59
Security services 16 38 0.79
Loss on sale of fixed assets 00l -
Miscellaneous expenses 158.12 95.27
7.306.17 7,276.41

Auditors remuneration (net of services)

Audit fees 1125 1125
Other Services

1125 11.25
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4.25

4.26

4.27

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

a. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 13.00 22.47
provided for (net of capital advances)

Total 13.00 22.47

b. In the financial year 2014-15, a party filed a petition against the Company and a leasehold land owner on the grounds that the sub lease given
by the leased owner was not valid, The Company is contesting the petition. Based on a legal opinion obtained, the Management does not
reasonably expect that such legal action, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse cffect on the Company's
results of operations or financial conditions.

¢. The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s
EPFO, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the
purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. The company has started complying with this prospectively from the month of March
2019. In respect of the past period there are significant implementation and interpretative challenges that the management is facing and is
awaiting for clarity to emerge in this regard, pending which, this matter has been disclosed under the Contingent liability section in the financial
statements. The impact of the same is not ascertainable.

d. The Company has a process, whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. Based on such
reassessment at the year end, it is noted that no provision is required to be made for any material foreseeable losses as per applicable regulatory
framework.

Earnings per share (EPS)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders 450.48 672.71
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 10,785,825 10,785,825
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 10,785,825 10,785,825
Basic EPS of par value of Rs.10 (Rs.) 418 6.24
Diluted EPS of par value of Rs.10 (Rs.) 4.18 6.24
Leascs

. On transition to Ind AS 116, the Company recognised Rs. 3,012.26 of right-of-use assets and Rs. 4,052.16 of lease liabilities, recognising the

difference of Rs. 750.60 net of deferred tax of Rs 289.30 in retained earnings. Right-of-use assets are adjusted for prepayments of Rs. 80.84.
When measuring lease liabilities, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019. The rate applied
is 9.25%.

. The changes in the carrying values of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2020 has been stated in note 2.3

. Following are the changes in the lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2020:

Particulars Amount
Balance at 1 April 2019 (on transition) 4,052.16
Additions 117.58
Finance cost accrued during the period 364.42
Payment of lease liabilitics (376.99)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 4,157.17

Non-current lease liabilities 4,024.72
: 132.45
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4.27

D.

4.28

Leases (continued)

Lease liabilities

Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year

One to five years

More than five years

Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 March 2020

. Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Interest on lease liabilities
Expenses relating to short term leases
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of low-value assets

. Amount recognised in Statement of Cashflows

Payment of lease liabilities

Segment reporting

As at
31 March 2020

436.88
1,816.04
7,266.41

9,519.33

For the year ended
31 March 2020
364.42
50.43

414.85

376.99

376.99

Ind AS 108 "Operating segment" ("Ind AS 108") establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about
operating segment and related disclosure about products and services, geographic area, and major customers based on the "management
approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segment are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM who is the Managing Director of the Company, evaluates the Company's performance
and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company's sole operating segment is therefore medical and healthcare services'. Accordingly,
there are no additional disclosures to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the financial statements.

The Company operates in India and revenue generations is from a wide spread of the customers and hence the group wide disclosures of major

customers are not applicable.
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4.29 Assets and liabilities relating to employce benefits

i) Defined contribution plan
The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees
towards Provident Fund (PF') and Employees State Insurance scheme (‘'ESI') which is a defined contribution plan, The Company has
no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contribution to PF and ESI charged to the Statement of profit and
loss is Rs. 230.37 (PY: Rs 229.66) and ESlis Rs. 105.00 (PY: Rs, 148.23)

ii) Defined benefit plan

The Company provides gratuity for its employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service
for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees' last drawn
basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a
funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognized funds in India. Liability with regard to this plan is determined by an
actuarial valuation as at the end of the year and are charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

Following table sets out the status of employee benefits as at balance sheet date

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Defined benefit obligation liability 398.68 356.49
Plan assets (179.35) (208.88)
Net defined benefit liability 219.33 147.61

A. Funding

The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the insurance
Company carries out a funding valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising
as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded
status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

B. Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year 356.49 308.73
Current service cost 71.33 70.41
Interest cost 25.42 23.69
Benefits paid (48.54) (25.23)
Actuarial (gains)/ loss recognised in the other comprehensive income

- experience adjustments (0.93) 332.47
- changes in financial assumptions (5.09) (353.58)
Balance at the end of the year 398.68 356.49

Reconciliation of the present value of plan asscts

Balance at the beginning of the year 208.88 227.18
Contributions paid into the plan by employer 5.00 -
Benefits paid (48.54) (25.23)
Expected return on plan assets 14.64 16.41
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets (0.63) (9.48)
Balance at the end of the year 179.35 208.88
Net defined benefit liability / (asset) 219.33 147.61
Current 45,16 41,73

174.17 . 105.88
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4.29 Assets and liabilities relating to employece benefits (continued)

C. Expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss

=

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 71.33 70.41
Interest cost 25.42 23.69
Interest income (14.64) (16.41)
§2.11 77.69
Remeasurements recognised in Other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation 6.02) @21.11)
Retum on plan assets excluding interest income 0.63 9.48
(5.39) (11.63)
76.72 66.06
Summary of actuarial assumptions As at As at

31 March 2020
Financial assumptions

Discount rate 6.82%
Future salary growth rate 0% to 3%
Return on Plan assets 9.25%

Mortality table IALM (2012-14)

31 March 2019

7.65%
3.00%
9.25%
LIC(2006-2008)

Discount Rate: Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for

the estimated term of obligations.

Expected rate of return on plan assets : This is based on the expectation of average long term rate of return expected on investments of

the fund during the estimated term of obligations.

Salary Escalation Rate: The estimates of future salary increase considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and

other relevant factors,
Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables.

. Maturity profile of the defincd benefit obligation
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis): As at
Particulars 31 March 2020
Within 1 year 45.16
2 to 5 years 184.48
6 to 10 years 183.88

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 9.8 years (PY: 10.04 years).

iii) Compensated absences

As at

31 March 2019
41,72

170,68

172.22

The accrual for unutilised leave is determined for the entire available leave balance standing to the credit of the employees at the year-
end. The value of such leave balances that are eligible for carry forward, is determined by an actuarial valuation as at the end of the
year and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has incurred an expense

on compensated absences amounting to (Rs. 40.83) (PY: Rs, 30.44).

iv) Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, affected the defined benefit obligation by the

amounts shown below:

31 Murch 2020 31 March 2019
Particulars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount Rate ( 1% movement) (23.51) 26,48 (20.62) 23.20
Future Salary Growth
(1% movement) 29.73 (26.78) 26.04 (23.45)
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 4,99 (5.70) 493 (5.66)

v) The Company has to pay Rs. 45.16 (PY Rs.73.80) as contribution towards its defined benefit obligation in the next financial year.
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4.32

4.33

Details of dues to Micro and small enterprises as defined under the ISMED Act, 2006

a) The amount remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers at the end of the year is Rs. Nil (FY 19: Nil)

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act,2006 is Rs Nil (FY 19: Nil)

¢) The amount of the payment made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting year is Rs. Nil (FY 19:
Nil)

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. Nil (FY 19: Nil)

¢) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year is Rs. Nil (FY 19: Nil)

f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowances as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. Nil
(FY 19: Rs. Nil)

This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Auditors have placed
reliance on the information provided by the management.

Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') activities (section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As per the section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules therein, the Board of Directors have formed a CSR Committee. The
proposed CSR activities is preventive health care.

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was Rs. 14.02 (PY: Rs. 3.56). Out of the total amount, an amount of Rs.
10.00 (PY: Rs. 12.11) has been spent by the Company.

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particul
RS 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Average net profit of the companies for last three Financial Years 701.02 178.19
Prescribed CSR expenditure to be spent (2% of the average net profit) 14.02 3.56
Amount spent towards Preventive health care 10.00 12.11
Amount unspent / yet to be paid in cash 4,02 -

CIF Value of Imports
The Company does not have any imports of capital or other goods during the year.

Value of Medical Consumables and Pharmacy Consumed

Particulars For the Year ended 31 March 2020 For the Year ended 31 March 2019
Rs Yo Rs Yo
Imported - - - -
Indigenous 5,000.21 100 4,755.49 100
Total 5,000.21 100 4,755.49 100

There are no political contributions made during the year,

There are no earnings and expenditures in foreign currency in the current period. The Company does not have any un-hedged foreign currency
exposure.
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W

(a)
(b)
(©

(d

(e)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Related parties

Names of related parties and description of relationship with the Company:

Holding Company
Ultimate Holding Company
Subsidiary Companies

Key managerial personnel (KMP)
M, §. Rama Mohan Rao

Dr, P Ramesh Babu

Mr. P Ravi Kiran

Mr. Nagendra Kumar Sagi

Other Non Executive Directors
Mandayapurath Azad Moopen
Sreenath Pocha Reddy
Thadathil Wilson

Viktam Singh Beniwal

Other Independent Directors
Abdurahman Kartholiparamba
K Bapaiah Chowdary

Relatives of KMP

M. P Subba Rao
Mus. P S Kamala Devi
Mrs, M Madhusmitha
Mr. P Mahendra Babu
Mrs. K Madhumathi
Dr. P Vasundhata Devi
Mrs. P Madhuri

Mr. R Chalapathi Rao
Mis, R Radhabai

Mrs, M Sailaja

Mrs, P Maha Lakshini

Related party transactions:

Aster DM Healthcare Limited, India

Union Investment P Limited, Mauritius

Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP
Sanghamitra Hospitals Private Limited
Komali Fertility Centre LLP

Chairman and Director

Managing Director

Director and Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

Father of Managing Directot
Mother of Managing Director
Daughter of Managing Director
Brother of Managing Director
Sister of Managing Director

Sister of Chainman and Director
Wife of Mr. P Mahendia Babu
Father in law of Managing Director
Mother in law of Managing Director
Daughter-in-law of Chairman

Wife of Dr. P, Ramesh Babu

The Company has entered into the following transactions with related parties during the year ended 31st March 2020

Transactions with key

ial persons i

ling Directors:

For the year ended

Particulars Name of the Related Party 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rent Dr P Ramesh Babu 42.26 44.01
Total 42.26 44.01
Remuneration Dr P Ram?shlBabu 176.00 264.00
Mr, P Ravi Kiran 60.50 66.00
Total 236.50 330.00
Balances with key managerial persons including Directors:
For the year ended
Particulars Nanie of the Related Party 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rent Deposit Dr P Ramesh Babu 30.00 30,00
Rent Payable Dv P Ramesh Babu 1.82 -
Remuneration Payable Mr. Ravi Kiran Pothineni 0.43 -
Total 32.25 30.00
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)

Related parties (continued)

Transactions with related parties other than key managerial persons :

For the year ended

Particulars Name of the Related Party 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Rent Paid P.Mahalakshmi 12.89 13.38
D P. Vasundhara Devi 40.71 4248
P.Subba Rao 20.36 2124
P.S Kamala Devi 20.36 2124
K Madhumathi 40.71 4248
M .Sailaja 26,18 2549
P Mahendra Babu 40.71 42 48
Total 201.92 208.79
License fee income Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP 14.16 1416
Komali fettility Centre LLP 15.00 375
Total 29.16 17.91
Purchase of pharmacy and medical consumables Aster DM health care Itd - 028
Professional services received Aster DM health care Itd 0.70 408
Reimbursement of travelling expenses Aster DM health care Itd 039 1.38
Staff recruitment services received Aster DM health care Itd - 2.56
Remuneration paid P Mahalakshmi 9.00 9.00
Dr P.Vasundhara Devi 6.00 6.00
M Sailaja 033 1190
P Madhusmitha 588 5.88
P.Mahendra Babu 4025 42.00
Nagendra Kumar Sagi 11.63 1095
Total 73.09 85.73
Advance towards capital contribution Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP 19.01 12.00
Investment Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP - 22.25
Komali fertility Centre LL.P - 40.00
Sanghamitra Hospitals private limited - 2,915.10
Deemed investment - Corporate Guarantee * Sanghamitra Hospitals private limited 2821 -
* The Company has given corporate guarantee to bank against the loan taken by its subsidiary. Also refer note 4 4(ii)
Balances with related parties other than key managerial persons :
Particulars Name of the Related Party As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Remuneration/ Salary payable P Mahalakshmi 0.60 0.59
P.Madhusmitha 042 0.42
P.Mahendra Babu 0.69 2.69
Dr P.Vasundhara Devi 045 -
Total 2.16 3.70
Rent Payable P.Mahalakshmi 1.66 023
Dr.P Ramesh Babu - 031
P Mahendra Babu 0.72 -
Dr.P.Vasundhara Devi 087 .
P.Subba Rao 014 .
P.S Kamala Devi 0.68 .
K Madhumathi 027 -
M Sailaja 112 -
Total 5.46 0.54
Purchase of pharmacy and medical consumables Aster DM health care 1td 0.28 028
Professional services received Aster DM health care Itd - 4.08
Reimbursement of travelling expenses Aster DM health care ltd 1.20 138
Staff recruitment services received Aster DM health care Itd 256 2,56
Advance paid Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP 3101 12.00
Rent Deposits paid P Mahalakshmi 561 5.30
Dr P Vasundhara Devi 30.00 30.00
P.Subba Rao 15.00 15.00
P § Kamala Devi 1500 15.00
K _Madhumathi 30.00 30.00
P Mahendra Babu 30.00 30.00
Total 125.61 125.30
Investment Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP 47.75 4775
Komali fertility Centre LLP 40.00 40.00
Sanghamitra Hospitals private limited 2,943 32 2,915.10
Total 3,031.07 3,002.85
Note

1) The KMP and relatives of KMP are covered by the Company's gratuity policy and are eligible for compensated absences along with other
employees of the Company. The proportionale amount of gratuity and compensated absences cost pertaining to individuals hyye-nat_been
included in the aforementioned disclosures as these are not delermined on individual basis U gamess
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437  Capital Management
The Company aims to maintain sound capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development and

growth of its business. The Management monitors the adjusted net debt to equity ratio.
For the purpose of adjusted net debt to equity ratio, adjusted net debt is long term and short term borrowings adjusted with cash and cash

equivalents. Total equity comprises of issued share capital and all other equity reserves.
The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio as at the balance sheet date was as follows:

As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company (A) 11,641.16 11,937.29
Long-term borrowings excluding current maturities 3,660.13 3,824,96
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,196,92 836.99
Short-term botrowings - 91.53
Total borrowings 4,857.05 4,753.48
Less: cash and cash equivalents 419.11 56.12
Adjusted net debt (B) 4,437.94 4,697.37
Adj | net debt to equity ratio (B/A) 0.38 0.39

e
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438 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk munagement

A, Accounting clussifications and fair values
The following table sliows the carrying amounits wid fir valies of linancin assels and financial linbilities, including their levels in the fair valie hicrarchy,

Levels in Fair value hierurchy

Level 1: quoled prices (unadjusled) in active markels for identical assets or liabititics.

Level 2: inpul other dian quoled prices included in Level | ihal are abservable for Uie assel or liability, eitler directly (i ¢ s prices) or indireetly (i, derived from prices)
Level 3: inpuls for the assel or liability Uiat ure nol based on observable market dnla (unobservable inpuls).

31 March 2020

Larrylag minnjig Fuir value
Finuncinl
Noig; ottty ’::::ﬂ;':l‘::‘l labiltis Tatal Level | Level2 Leveld Tutal
umartised gosi
il assets mewsured at Fair value
Current investmnts 44 1,154 65 - = 1,154 63 15465 ’ - 1.154 65
115465 - - 1,154.65 L1s5as - - LISGS
Financlal assets not measured at Fair value
I'rade receivables 4.9 - 2,65165 . 2,65165 . - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 4.10 - 419.11 . 41211 - - - .
Ollier Fuumeial Assets: 45 . . - . - -
Seeurily deposils . 18821 ! 188221 . . L '
Dank deposits duc to mature afler 12 months (rom reporting
date - 4300 - 43.00 . . . .
Interest ncernod but nol due on deposits maturing afler 12
montls from reporting date : 217 . 217 ¥ : : .
Contracl asscls - 124.06 B 124 06 ) . . .
Advance Io a related party - 3101 . 3101 . . . .
Advance to employees - 66.36 - 6636 - . - .
Other Advamecs recoverable in casl or kind - 1.07 . 107 - - - -
= 82664 - 350064 - - - -
Financial liabllitics not meusured st fair valuc
Non ewrent borrowings 413 - - 3,660.13 3,660,143 . - - .
Current borrowings 413 - - . - . . - .
Nou current tease lighilities . - 4,024.72 4,024 72 . - . -
Currentlease liabilities - - 13245 13245 . - . -
Teade payb) 415 - - 1,824 85 1,82485 . . s d
Other finaneial liabilities 416
Currentinaturities of long-term borrow ings - - 1,196 92 1,196.92 . . - .
cerucd bul not due on borrowings - - 26.09 26,09 - . - -
d on redeemable Preference Shares - - 592 592 . . - -
Dues to creditors for capital goods - . 16001 160.01 v . - -
Accrued safaries and benefits - - 58945 58945 . . - -
Other puyubles - . 162.71 162.71 . . . -
Deferred guarantee commission - B 26.54 2634
- - 11BN TR LLK0Y. 78 . - - -
31 Maich 2019
Carrying amount alp vnlue

Finuncial assets - | Finuncialussety— | Fnancial
Nole - ’ liabilitics - Tatal Level | Lewel 2 Letwl 3 Totisl
FVPL Amortised cost '

amuortised cost

Financhl assets measured a1 fuir value

Curent nvestments 44 23254 . - 21254 23254 . . 23254
232.54 - = pi ] 2328 - - 2)2.54
Financhul assels not messured ut fir value

Trade receivables 49 - 2,805.64 - 2,405.64 - - - -
Casli and eash equivnlents 4.1 - 36.12 - 56,12 . - . -
Other Finimieial Assets: 45 - -
Securily Deposits - 181.04 N 18104 . 5 . :

Rank deposits due to mature after 12 months from reporting
dute - 1550 - 1550 - - - -

Interest necrued but not due on deposits inaturing after 12

monllis (rom reporting date . 212 . 212 - - - -
Conlruct assets - 14991 - 149.91 - . - -
Advance to nrelated parly - 1200 - 12,00 - - - -
Advinice (o cmployoes . 7430 . .30 = . : =
Other Adsances recovernble in cash or kind - 1.07 - 1.07 - . . .
- 3.297.70 - L9770 - - - =

Finsuticial Baliilities not measured ut fabr vilue

Non current borrowings 413 . - 382496 3,424 96 - - - .
Current borrowings 4.13 - - 91,53 92153 - - . -
I'rande payables 4.17 - - 1,776.91 177691 - - - .
Other financiu] liabilitics 414
Current moluwsitics of long-tenn horrowings . - 836.99 B36.99 - - . .
Interest acerued but nel due on borrowings - - 27388 2788 - - . -
Dividend on redeennble Preferenice Shares . - 590 5.90 - . . .
Dues to credilors for capilal goods . - 94.80 94.80 - - . -
Acerued salaries and henefils . . 44770 A47.70 - . - -

= - 136.67 13667 - . - «
= . 124335 724135 - - - -
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4.38 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s activities exposed it to markel risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors. The Board supervises overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and use of financial instrument

The financial authority limits seek to limit and mitigate transactional risks by setting out the threshold ol approvals required for entering into contractual
obligations

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as equity prices.

i) Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to markel risk for changes in interest rate environment relates mainly to its debt obligations.

The Company’s policy is to maintain an efficient and optimal interest cost structure using a mix of [ixed and variable rate debts and long-term and short-term
borrowings

The Company enters into cross cutrency inlerest rale swaps Lo reduce its exposure to interest rate volatility. In accordance with the Company's policy the
duration of such cross currency interest rate swaps must not exceed the tenure of the underlying debt.

The Company's borrowings majorly consists of project funding loans, working capital loans having variable rate of interest.

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing instruments as reported to management is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Fixed rate instruments

Financial liabilities (including borrowings) 841.99 1,229.78

Financial assets (includes bank deposits) 109.36 89.80

Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities (including borrowings) 4.015.06 3.523.70
4,015.06 3,523.70

Total financial liabilities 4,966.41 4,843.28

Sensitivity analysis

A rcasonably possible change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rale at the reporting date would increase / (decrease) equity and profit before tax by the
following amounts. This analysis assumes thal all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Impact on Profit or Loss Other components of equity

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1% increase in MCLR rate
1% decrease in MCLR rate

40.15
(40.15)

35.24
(35.24)

40.15

(40.15)

3524
(35.24)

ii) Fair Value

The fair values of the units of mutual fund schemes are based on net asset value at the reporting date.
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4.38 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises
principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments
Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary
approvals for credit. The collection from trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables based on type of customer is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Government and govemment affiliated parties 2,513.00 2,619.80
Other parties 540,28 465.80
Total 3,053.28 3,085.60

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss from customers :

31-Mar-20
Particulars Not Due 0-1 year 1-2 years More than 2 years | Loss Allowance Total

Government and government affiliated parties 582.00 1,593.00 249.00 89.00 (342.63) 2,170.37
Other parties 168.00 280.00 52.00 40.28 (59.01) 481.27

Total 750.00 1,873.00 301.00 129.28 (401.64) 2,651.64
31-Mar-19

Particulars Not Due 0-1 year 1-2 years More than 2 years | Loss Allowance Total

Government and government affiliated parties 925.73 1.498.56 156.30 39.21 (217.99) 2.401.81
Other parties 238.05 129.66 70.58 27.50 (61.97) 403.82

Total 1,163.78 1,628.22 226.88 66.71 (279.96) 2,805.63

' As at
Allowance for Credit Loss 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning 279.96 166.26
Bad debts written off (disallowances set off) (25.16) -
Expected credit loss recognised 146.84 113.70
Balance at the end 401.64 279.96
Revenue from customers accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 is as below:
As at

Name of the cust 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Customer 1 - 2,109.00

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies.
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4.38 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)

¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that thc Company will not be ablc to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that arc settled by delivering cash or anothier financial assct as they fall
duc. The Company is exposed to (his risk from its opcrating activitics and financing activitics. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to cnsurc, as far as possible that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when they become due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Compam's reputation

Liquidity requircments arc maintaincd within the credit facilitics cstablishcd and are ad and available to the Company to meet its obligations.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturitics of'signilicant financial liabilitics as of the reporting date. The arc gross and undi d
As at 3 Mareh 2020
Coutractual cash ont flows
Particuls Canryi f
articutars . Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-5 Years vaee;h:m & Tolal*
e01S

Borrowings (Non-current) 3,630.13 = 1,485.39 2,699.62 - 4,185.01
Borrowings, |1% redccmable Preference shares (Non-current) 30,00 - - - 3000 30.00
Leasc liabilitics (Non-current) 4,024.72 - 463.79 1,352 25 7.266.41 9,082.43
Current maturities of long-lerm borrowings 1,196.92 1,196.92 - - - 1,196,92
Lease liabilitics (Current) 13243 436.88 - - - 436.88
Tradc payables 1,824 .85 1,824 85 - - . 1,824,835
Other financial liabilitics (excluding current maturitics of borrowings) 97072 970.72 - - - 970.72

11.809.78 4,429.37 1,949.18 4,051.87 7.296.41 17,726.82
*The contractual cash out flows are fnelusive of interest amount
As at 31 March 2009

Contraclual cash Mows
Paiticuls Carrying val e
fticutars SEHEEIRRE Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-5 Years Mm\,t :h:'" B Total*
Cears

Bowowings (Non-cutront) 3,794.96 - 1,281.56 3.153.23 121 46 4,536.25
lorrowings, 11% redeemable Prefercnce shares (Non-current) 30.00 - - - 30.00 30.00
Current maturitics of long-term borrowings 83699 836.99 - - - 836.99
(Cash credit and overdraft 91.53 91.53 - B - 9153
Trade payables 1,776 91 1,776.91 - B - 1,776.91
Other financial liabilitics (excluding current maturitics of borrowings) 71294 71294 - - - 71294

7,243,33 3,418.37 1,281.56 J,153.23 [51.46 8,004.62
*The contractual cash out flows arc mclusive of intgrest amount

4.39 Impact of COVID-19

In view of lockdown duc to Lhe authreak of COVID pandemic, the opcrations of thi Company were scaled down from sccond half of March 2020, The duration of this lockdown is uscertain at this
poinl in time. However, the Company’s operations are being scaled up in compliaues: with the directives issued by the Govemment authoritics. While this has impacted e sales perlomisnce of the
Company, the Management continues Lo closcly monitor the situation. M has taken ad steps like rutionalize fixed cost and will take appropriatc action, as nceessany. o scale up
operations in duc li wilh the applicabl lati Accordingly, the company continucs (o prepare the financial statcments on a going concem basis. As per the Management’s current

asscssment, no significant impact is expected on the cammying amounts of inventorics, intangible assets, trade reccivables, investments and other financial asseis and it continues to monitor changes in
fulure cconomic ditions. The | of the impact of this global health pandemie may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial results

4.40 Previous year figures
Previous ycar figurcs have been regrouped/reclassified, where cver necessary, to conform to current year's presentations

As per our report of ¢ven date attached

Jor BS R & Associales LLP for and hehalf of the Board of Direciors of
Chartered Acconntants Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Mullispecialty Hospital Private Limited
ICAT Fim regisi ration number: 11623 1W/W-100024 CIN: U73100AP1995PRC020491

ARhi Kapadiva JeA Hamenh Ba Mr. M.S.Rama Molian Rao
Parter Managing Direg Chairman and Director
Membership No. 212991 DIN: 0147 DIN: 02356742

CFO & li’hnlc- ime Director
DIN: 05116806

Place: Hyderabad Place: Vijayawada
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RAMESH
HOSPITALS

B SR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Salarpuria Knowledge City,
Orwell, 6™ Floor, Unit-3,
Sy. No. 83/1, Plot No. 2,
Raidurg, Hyderabad-500081

Dear Sir,

This representation letter is provided in comnection with your audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private limited (“the company™)
which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, for the purpose of
expressing an opinion as to whether the Ind AS financial statements give a true and fair view in
accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 including applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
and accounting principles generally accepted in India.

We acknowledge our responsibility as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated 04
March 2020 for preparing the Tnd AS financial statements of the company which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 March 2020, profit/loss and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the company for the year ended on that date and for the
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance Schedule ITI (Division 1) to the
Companies Act, 2013.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves in order to provide the
following representations:

1. The Ind AS financial statements and appended notes thereto, include all material disclosures
necessary for these Ind AS financial statements to show a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, the profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and the cash flaws of
the company and disclosures required to be made therein under the Companies Act, 2013/
relevant Ind AS

Accounting records

2. We acknowledge our responsibility regarding:
(a)  preparation of the annual accounts in accordance with, the applicable Ind AS and
providing proper explanation relating to any material departures from those Ind AS;
P (b)  selection of accounting policies and applying them consistently and making judgments
/,a’/\é:u/\'ff’)f:fd;} and estimates that arc rcasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
! (1‘? -

% state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year, profit and loss and other
@ ‘:-‘.-

comprehensive income, changes in equity and the cash flows of the company for that
= period; -
/ (©) taking proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records for
2N

safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;
(d)  laying down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such

' internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and
(e)  devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. flok
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3. We have identified and informed you of financial transactions/ matters that may have an adverse

4.

5.

effe
We

a.

We
(@)
(b)
(©
(d)
(©

®

10.

(2)

(b)

(©)

ct on the functioning of the company.
confirm that:

the company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements.

the company has made provision, as required under applicable law or Ind AS, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivate contracts

there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company

further confirm that:

loans and advances made by the company on the basis of security have been properly
secured and the terms on which they have been made are not prejudicial to the interests of
the company or its members;

transactions of the company which are represented merely by book entries are not
prejudicial to the interests of the company;

assets of the company consisting of shares, debentures and other securities have not been
sold at a price less than that at which they were purchased by the company

loans and advances made by the company have not been shown as deposits;

no expenses of personal nature (other than those payable under contractual obligations or in
accordance with generally accepted business practice) and/ or not related to the company’s
business have been charged to the Ind AS financial statements.

where it is stated in the books and documents of the company that any shares have been
allotted for cash, cash has actually been received in respect of such allotment, and if no
cash has actually been so received, the position as stated in the account books and the
Balance sheet is correct, regular and not misleading.

We have reviewed the company’s accounting policies and estimation techniques for use in
the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements and confirm that the accounting policies
and estimation techniques selected are appropriate to give a true and fair view for the
company's particular circumstances.

We confirm that all transactions and events have been carried out in accordance with
relevant legislation or under proper authority and that all transactions undertaken by the
Company have satisfactory commercial substance.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the Ind AS
financial statements.

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control (including those relating to
internal financial controls as referred to in section 134 to the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules there under) of which we are aware.

We have provided you with:
financial records and related data comprising of all books of account and supporting
documentation which are agreed and reconciled;

access to all information, whether kept at the head office or elsewhere, of which the
management is aware that are relevant to the preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements, such as records, documentation and other matters including books of accounts
maintained in electronic mode;

additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
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(d)

(e)

®
(2

11.

12.

13.

all minutes of meetings of shareholders/ board of directors/ audit committee summaries of
meetings held; and

unrestricted access to persons within the company from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain evidence.

the effect of changes in the company’s business activities

significant changes in commitments, contractual obligations, debt covenants and
contingent liabilities including litigations or claims.

The significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured
at fair value, are reasonable.

No subsequent events have been identified that require adjustment to the assumptions and
disclosures as included in the Ind AS financial statements.

There is neither any plan nor any intention that may affect the carrying value or
classification of assets or liabilities reflected in the Ind AS financial statements.

Going concern

14.

Fraud

15. We
limi

We have provided you with all relevant information regarding all of the key risk factors,
assumptions and uncertainties of which we are aware that are relevant to the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, and these are fully disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements.

acknowledge that because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent
tations of internal controls, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements due to

fraud or error may occur. and not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed by you in accordance with the Standards on Auditing. We also acknowledge that we
are also responsible to take appropriate action when a fraud is detected or reported though any of

the
(e-g

sources .We confirm that there have been no internal reporting on offences involving fraud
., vigil mechanism reports etc.), including those that are required to be submitted by cost

accountant or company secretary in practice in accordance with the requirements of section

143
16. We

)

(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

confirm the following:

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the Ind AS financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

ii) We have disclosed to you all information in relation to:

a) fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the company and
involves:
® management;.
e employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
o others where the fraud could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial

statements.

b) allegations of fraud or suspected fraud, affecting the company’s Ind AS financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or
others.

In respect of the above, we acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In
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particular, we acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and
operation of accounting and internal control systems to prevent and detect fraud and error.

The conclusions reached by us are based on the rationale of facts and data that were identified
during the investigation/other action taken by us to evaluate the fraud reported by you.

17.

18.

19.

20.

In particular, we confirm that we are responsible for the following:
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements which are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error.
to set up a vigil mechanism for reporting suspected fraud and administer the mechanism
effectively,
take appropriate action to detect the fraud and wrongful gain or loss, if any, incurred on
account of the fraud,
take appropriate action against the fraudsters,
address the control weaknesses which were the root cause for fraud and strengthen the
internal control system.

We have not withheld from you any relevant information that we are aware of and would
have an implication on the process of your responsibilities to report fraud under the
Companies Act, 2013.

We have acted in good faith and in the best interests of the Company regarding the action
taken by the management to evaluate the fraud reported by you.

We believe that appropriate action has been taken against employees/officers involved in the
fraud and we confirm that appropriate controls have been put in place to ensure that such
incidences are avoided in the future.

Compliance with laws and regulations

21.

22.

23.

24,

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance
with or deficiencies in financial reporting practices that could have a material effect on the
Ind AS financial statements in the event of non-compliance. We are not aware of any
irregularities, or allegations of irregularities, involving management or employees who have
a significant role in the accounting and internal control systems, or that could have a material
effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company has not made any improper payments
or payments which are illegal or against public policy.

The company has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements which could have a
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has
been no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations and contractual agreements, whether or not discussed
with legal counsel, whose effects should be considered when preparing the Ind AS financial
statements.

Share capital

25.

We have recorded or disclosed, as appropriate, for each class of share capital (with different
classes of shares treated separately), the number and amount of shares authorised, the
number of shares issued, subscribed and fully paid, and subscribed but not fully paid, par
value per share, a reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at
the end of the year, shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for




the sale of shares/ disinvestment, including the terms and amounts, and other requirements in
respect of the company’s capital including:

(a) The shares in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company or its
ultimate holding company including shares held by it or by subsidiaries or associates of
the holding company or the ultimate holding company, in aggregate.

(b) Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 per cent shares
specifying the number of shares held.

26. The company has allotted shares for cash and received cash in respect of such shares
allotted.

27. We have disclosed to you, as appropriate, all parties, who have, direct or indirect beneficial
ownership in the Company, including executed changes throughout the year and post year
end to the date of this letter.

Reserves and surplus

28. We have classified the reserves of the company appropriately, and the additions and
deductions to the reserves since the last balance sheet has been shown under each of the
heads specified in Schedule III (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013.

Financial liabilities- Borrowings

29. The company has not availed any borrowings other than those disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements.

30. The disclosure of terms of repayment of each borrowing such as date of maturity, number
and amount of instalments, rate of interest and other significant terms in the Ind AS financial
statements is accurate and complete.

31. Borrowings were applied for the purpose for which such borrowings were obtained.

32. There has been no breach in debt covenants relating to borrowings made by the company 31
March 2020 and the date of this letter.

33. Borrowings guaranteed by the directors of the company are as stated in note 4.13 of the Ind
AS financial statements,

Financial liabilities- Trade payables

34. Amounts classified as trade payables represent bona fide amounts due on account of goods
purchased or services received in the normal course of business and do not include liabilities
on account of other contractual obligations.

Provisions

35. All known material liabilities and provisions are included in the Ind AS financial statements.
Full provision has been made for all known liabilities at the Balance sheet date including
guarantees, commitments and contingencies where the items are expected to result in
significant loss and are classified into long term and short-term provision and disclosed
appropriately.

36. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is the pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Financial liabilities (including Borrowings, Trade payables and other financial liabilities)

5




37.

The company has classified its financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, except as provided by Ind AS 109.

Employee benefits

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

All employee benefits i.e., short term, long term, post-employment benefits and termination
benefits that the company is committed to providing, including any arrangements that are
statutory, contractual or implicit in the company’s actions, whether funded or unfunded,
have been identified and properly accounted for and/or disclosed.

All settlements and curtailments in respect of employment benefit schemes have been
identified and properly accounted for.

We confirm that we have made you aware of all employee benefit schemes in which
employees of the company participate.

The liability for gratuity and compensated absences has been determined by an independent
actuary as at 31 March 2020 by using projected unit credit method as prescribed under Ind
AS 19, Employee Benefits. We have provided the membership data to the actuary for
actuarial valuation purposes which is accurate and complete.

The actuarial assumptions comprising of demographic assumptions and financial
assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible. The financial assumptions are based on
market expectations, at the end of the reporting period, for the period over which the
obligations are to be settled.

We confirm that we have considered the impact of revised gratuity limits for the purpose of
actuarial valuation of gratuity for year ended 31 March 2020

We have made provision towards ex-gratia payable to employees and consultants which is in
the nature of an incentive, considering the performance of Company. The outstanding
provision as at 31 March 2020 is Rs 175 lakhs.

Property, plant and equipment

45.

46.

The expenditure charged to the capital account in the books of the company wholly
represents additions to or improvements to the existing capital assets of the company, and
the amounts so charged do not in any instance represent repairs and maintenance of such
assets or any expenditure properly chargeable to revenue. Cost includes all incidental
expenditure including the estimated costs of dismantling, removing or restoring items of
property, plant and equipment, replacement costs and costs of major inspections and is net of
refundable taxes e.g. GST. Fixed assets also include assets acquired on finance lease/ hire
purchase®er Bookmark not defined. yhich have been appropriately disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements and spare parts meeting the definition of property, plant and equipment.
No capital expenditure has been charged to revenue during the year.

The company has adopted the useful lives prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies
Act, 2013 to determine the useful lives of its [ixed assets.
Asset Classification Useful Life (Years)
Building (Leaseholds) 25
Medical Equipment 13
Electrical Installation 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipment 5
P —

gw\uﬂf.s.:& N



47,

48.

Computers 3

Computers servers and networks 6

Vehicles 8

Provisions for depreciation including obsolescence have been made against property, plant
and equipment on the bases described in the Ind AS financial statements and at rates
calculated to reduce the net book amount of each asset to its estimated residual value by the
end of its useful life.

Items of property, plant and equipment have been reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances have indicated that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

Financial assets- Investments

49.
50.

Investments do not include any investment held on behalf of any other person.

The Company believes that other than disclosed in investment schedule there are no further
provision for impairment in respect of these investments as on 31 March 2020.

Inventories

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

We confirm that the whole of the inventory was the property of the company as at the
Balance sheet date and that all inventory owned by the company, wherever located, have
been recorded, including goods sent on consignment, but excludes goods sold and not
delivered. Inventories do not include:

goods purchased for which liabilities have not been provided,

goods returned by customers without credit to their accounts; or

goods billed to customers in advance of delivery.

Inventory quantities at the year-end were determined from the company’s inventory records,
after adjusting the differences identified during physical verification of inventories.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

We have no plans to abandon lines of product or other plans or intentions that will result in
any excess or obsolete inventory.

Provision, where material, has been made for losses as a result of damaged, unusable or
obsolete inventories to their estimated net realisable value.

Financial assets- Trade receivables

56.

Amounts classified as trade receivables represent bona fide amounts due on account of
goods sold or services rendered in the normal course of business. Trade receivables do not
include charges for goods shipped on consignment or on approval basis. Trade receivables
are expected to be realised in the normal course of business except for which provision has
been made in the Ind AS financial statcments. The provision made by the company for
expected losses on collection of debts is adequate.

Financial assets- Cash and bank equivalents

57.

The Balance Sheet includes all cash and bank balances of the company. Cash balances have
been physically verified at 31 March 2020 at all locations and no discrepancies have been
found.




58.

59.

There are no old and/or unusual reconciling items between bank balance as per books of
account and the bank statements as at the year-end which would result in any adjustment to
the Ind AS financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all earmarked balances with banks, balances with banks to the
extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings, guarantees and other
commitments, repatriation restrictions if any, and bank deposits with a maturity period of
more than 12 months.

Financial assets (including Investments, Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, loans
and other financial assets)

60.

Based on the company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual term of cash flows, the company has classified its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

Those to be measured subsequently at fair value through statement of profit or loss

Those measured at amortised cost

Revenue

61.

62.

We confirm that revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is recognised
when property in the goods or all significant risk and rewards of their ownership are
transferred to the customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of
consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods and regarding its collection. The
amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of sales tax, value added tax and service tax etc.,
and is net of returns, trade discounts and quantity discounts.

All revenue transactions are final and there are no side agreements with customers or other
terms.

Tax expense

63.

64.

65.

66.

We have complied with the income tax requirements within which we operate and have
accounted all liabilities of income tax which are due to the relevant income tax authorities.
We are not aware of any non-compliance that would give rise to additional liabilities by way
of penalty or interest. In particular:

In connection with any tax requirements, we are satisfied that our systems are capable of
identifying all material tax liabilities and transactions subject to tax and have maintained
all documents and records required to be kept by the relevant tax authorities in accordance
with the law.

We have submitted all returns and made all payments that were required to be made
(within the relevant time limits) to the relevant tax authorities.

Deferred tax asset/ liability reflects the tax impact of temporary differences between the
carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. Adequate
reduction in the carrying amount of the deferred tax asset have been made to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to be utilised in
accordance with Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets (MAT credit) as it believes that there is
convincing evidence as stated in the Ind AS financial statements that there would be future
taxable profits to realise these benefits.

The Company deducts and has deducted applicable Indian withholding taxes in respect of
any payments made to non-residents/ residents.




67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

Any sums payable by the Company covered by the provisions of Section 43B of Income Tax
Act, such as taxes, duties, cess or fees, etc., will be paid on or before the due date for filing
the return of income.

All orders, relevant communication and notices from the income-tax department, if any,
received during the period under review have been disclosed to us.

The Company has reasonably quantified and disclosed all material claims and reliefs which
it proposes to make in the return of income and all disallowances it could be subject to,
based on past experience.

The Company has evaluated the impact of ICDS for the period under review as indicated
above.

That there are no such expenses incurred in connection with earning the exempted dividend
income.

The Company has not made any payments for expenditure in excess of INR 10,000 in cash
as per section 40A (3) of the Income Tax Act.

Contingent liabilities

73.

74.

75.

Contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2020 do not include any contingencies, which are likely
to result in a loss and which, therefore, require adjustment of assets or liabilities.

There are no contingent liabilities, potential liabilities, threatened litigations or capital
commitments of material amounts, other than those disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS
financial statements.

All guarantees that have been given to third parties, director, officer have been adequately
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements. Further:

all the obligations in respect of guarantees have been duly recorded and disclosed

there are no guarantees issued up to the year-end which are yet to be recorded.

Other comprehensive income

76.

Components of other comprehensive income includes only those items of income and
expense that are specifically required or permitted by other Ind AS to be included in other
comprehensive income and are not required to be recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss.

COVID 19 related matters

71.

78.

79.

We have performed a comprehensive assessment of the implications of COVID 19 on the
financial statements of the Company including specifically on the going concern
assumption, impairment testing for property, plant and equipment, investments carried at
cost / fair value, estimate of expected credit losses and revenue recognized during the year,
net realizable value of inventory, valuation of financial instruments, significant estimates
(including the assumptions, data, method & disclosures), etc. and have accordingly, made
suitable adjustments/ disclosures to the financial statements.

We confirm that all scanned/ digitized/ filmed/ electronic documents provided by us to the
audit team during the lockdown period are ‘True Copies’ of the original document which are
in the possession of the Company.

We confirm that in preparing the management’s assessment of going concern, we have taken

into account all available information about the company’s ability to continue as a going

concern including any significant conditions & events that may cast a doubt to do so,

management’s intentions & plans and intentions & feasibility of such plans, financial

projections, including the analysis of the potential impact in relation to the COVID-19
9




80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

80.

87.

outbreak. We further confirm that the budgets and forecasts used for the purpose of the
management’s assessment of going concern have been re-assessed in light of the COVID-19
outbreak and in our view the budgets and forecasts are reasonable, achievable and
appropriate under the circumstances and consider risk factors identified and consider impact
of possible downside scenarios, as applicable.

All events, including the impact of COVID-19 disruptions and lockdowns, subsequent to the
date of the financial statements and for which Ind AS 10 require adjustment or disclosure
have been adjusted or disclosed appropriately in the financial statements.

On account of COVID-19 outbreak, we have considered all relevant market conditions
which might impact residual values or useful life of the assets. Basis our assessment, we
have concluded that no changes are necessitated to either the residual values / useful life of
the assets. We have also reviewed the depreciation method and concluded that the method is
appropriate.

On account of COVID-19 outbreak, there was a nationwide lockdown as on March 31, 2020,
accordingly, we understand that it was impracticable for you to observe the physical
inventory count in person. Consequently, we understand that you observed the physical
inventory count in respect of certain locations (Vijayawada Main Branch, MG Road and
Guntur) using live digital technology being MS teams. We confirm that the inventories that
we counted and which we displayed to you for your observations using digital technologies,
exist physically, was completely and accurately counted, was not damaged and the condition
of the inventory was not damaged.

We confirm that all our inventories are saleable and that the impact of COVID-19 on the
supply chain disruptions / market demand has not resulted in the net realizable values of the
inventories to be lower than its cost. Accordingly, we confirm basis the assessment made by
the Company, no additional provision as at March 31, 2020 is needed.

We confirm that we have made you aware of all changes in remuneration policies of the
Company due to COVID-19 outbreak and all such changes have been properly accounted in
books of accounts.

Management has re-evaluated the actuarial assumptions used for the purpose of valuing
employee benefit obligations in light of the COVID-19 outbreak and concludes that the
assumptions on salary growth rates, attrition rates / withdrawal rates, discount rate and other
key assumptions are reasonable.

We confirm that ECL has been calculated appropriately considering the indicators received
for delayed payments from customers. We confirm that there are no cases or requests for
deferment of payment from the customers apart from the ones already disclosed to you
which may affect this estimate. We have also considered the likelihood of increased credit
risk and consequent default emerging due to Covid-19. We confirm that the ECL model also
includes forward looking information (including macro-economic information) both when
assessing the significant increase in credit risk and when measuring expected credit losses.

We confirm that the company has not been subject to any new litigations and claims that
have arisen as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

Other matters

88.

89.
90.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the company’s related parties and all related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. Related party relationships and
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures.

We confirm that related party transactions do not involve any undisclosed side agreements.

We confirm that all related party transactions were conducted on terms equivalent to those
prevailing in an arm’s length transaction and in the ordinary course of business
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91. There are no
e onerous contracts, under Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets;
e  losses arising from sale and purchase commitments
e agreements and options to buy back assets previously sold
e assets pledged as collateral
e  other agreements not in the ordinary course of business.

92. No payment has been made during the year whether directly or indirectly, by way of
advertisement or otherwise to any political party in contravention of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, except as disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements.

93. No contribution has been made to National Defense Fund or any other Fund approved by the
Central Government for the purpose of national defense during the year, except as disclosed
in the Ind AS financial statements.

94. Operating segments have been identified based on the way in which the segments are
organised within the Company for making operating decisions and in assessing performance.
Subject to the specific requirements of Ind AS 108, financial information is disclosed in the
same manner and based on the same policies as they are reported internally and used by that
person or group of persons (the Company’s chief operating decision maker) that make
decisions about the resources to be allocated to the operating segments and assess their
performance.

95. The company has disclosed the information with regard to micro and small enterprises as
defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 on the
basis of available information.

96. None of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

97. We agree with the findings of experts in evaluating actuarial and litigation liability and have
adequately disclosed the competence and capabilities of the experts in determining the
amounts and disclosures used in the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements and
underlying accounting records. We are not aware of any matters that have had an impact on
the objectivity of the experts.

98. We have disclosed the full particulars of the loans given, investment made or guarantee
given or security provided and the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is
proposed to be utilised.

99. The company, pursuant to section 138(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 has appointed an
internal auditor and all the internal audit reports furnished by the internal auditor for the year
have been furnished to youErrnr! Bookmark not deﬁned..

100. In respect of contracts terminated during the year, and based on the risks assessed by the
management, there are no unrecorded liabilities against the company which could arise
subsequently and result in potential outflow of funds.

101. The company has made investments only through two layers of investment companies as
permitted under section 2(87) (d) and section 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

102. The assets and liabilities of the company have been classified as current or non-current based
on the following criteria:

Assets: Current assets are items listed on the company’s balance sheet that are expected to be
converted into cash within one fiscal year. Conversely, noncurrent assets are long term assets
that a company expect to hold over one fiscal year and cannot readily be converted into cash.




Liabilities: current liabilities that are due and payable within one year. Non-current liabilities
(Long term liabilities) are liabilities that are due after a year or more. Contingent liabilities are
liabilities that may or may not arise depending on certain events.

103.

104.

105.

106.

107.

108.

We have assessed all financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or
loss, to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more loss events that occurred subsequent to their initial recognition, and any impairments
identified have been recognised in the Ind AS financial statements, as appropriate. In respect
of investments in equity instruments, we have recognised an impairment loss when there has
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the instrument below cost, or
other objective evidence of impairment. We have determined whether a decline in fair value
below cost is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ in accordance with criteria as represented to you.

We have considered all financial instruments within the scope of impairment requirements
of Ind AS 109, other than those for which loss allowance is always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses, in assessing whether credit risk on these instruments
has increased significantly since their initial recognition. For all instruments where credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, loss allowance in the Ind AS
financial statements is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses

We confirm that in estimating the loss allowance for expected credit losses we have
considered relevant, reasonable and supportable forward-looking information available
without undue cost and effort at the reporting date.

The company has complied with the provisions relating to corporate social responsibility as
prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 and
any other pronouncements issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India in this regard from time to time.

We confirm that on March 25, 2018, the Company had entered into an agreement with
Dr.N.Sashidhar to establish and register a limited liability partnership under the Limited
Liability Partnership Act, 2008 in the name of "Aster Ramesh Duhita LLP" with an initial
capital contribution to be made up to Rs.100 lakhs in the ratio of 51:49 respectively. The
Company’s contribution amounts to Rs.47.75 Lakhs as of 31 March 2020 and Dr.
N.Sashidhar has contributed Rs.25 lakhs as of 31 March 2020

We confirm that on 1 April 2018, the Company had entered into a share purchase agreement
with the Key Promotor Group and the Remaining Shareholders Group of Sanghamitra
Hospitals Private Limited (SHPL) and acquired 51% stake in SHPL. The share purchase
agreement has a clause on ‘put option’ which states that the erstwhile promoters may request
the Company to purchase their balance holding in Sanghamitra. The Company shall make
best efforts to purchase the balance holdings directly or through its Affiliates and/or
nominee. In the event, the Company fails to do so, the erstwhile promoters shall have the
right to continue as Managing Director and shall have the right to transfer such shares to a
third party not being a competitor. Management has evaluated this put option and concluded
that since there is no obligation to purchase the promoter’s stake, no separate accounting of
the put option is necessary.
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109.

110.

111.

112.

113.

114.

115.

116.

117.

We confirm that on December 28, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with
Dr.Swapna Srinath to establish and register a limited liability partnership under the Limited
Liability Partnership Act, 2008 in the name of "Komali Fertility Centre LLP"., The Company
has contributed an amount of Rs.40 lakhs as of 31 March 2020. Similar contribution has
been made by Dr. Swapna Srinath as of 31 March 2020.

The Company has a hospital situated in Gunadala, Vijayawada which is located on land that
has been taken on lease from M/s Loyola College Society vide a lease agreement dated 21
Sep 2004. The lease was initially taken for a period of 9 years and 11 months which was
renewed for an additional period 15 years and 1 month. This additional lease period expired
on 31 January 2019. At the time of entering into the initial lease, a separate intent letter
dated 1st May 1994 was also issued by the Society stating that the Company will have an
option to request for renewal of lease for a further period of 25 years from 31 January 2019
based on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed. In accordance with this
intent letter, the Management has made an application dated 03 July 2018 to the Society to
extend the lease beyond 31 January 2019. However, the Society rejected this application and
has issued a notice to the Company to vacate the premises and to hand over the entire
building and structure to the Society. Aggrieved by this, the Management has filed a legal
case against the Society and the matter is presently sub-judices. Based on legal advice, the
Management is of the view that it has a good case to seek renewal of the lease and does not
expect any impact of this matter on the future operations of the hospital.

We confirm that the Company has made detailed assessment of all movable and immovable
assets located in hospital situated in Gunadala, Vijayawada which is located on land that has
been taken on lease from M/s Loyola College Society. Net book value of all immovable
assets located on the said premises as at 1 April 2018 has been amortized over remaining
period of two years and accordingly accelerated depreciation of Rs. 178 lacs is recorded in
the books as at 31 March 2020 and as at 31 March 2020 book value of asset is nil. No
accelerated depreciation has been recorded for movable assets located on the said premise as
Management believes that these movable assets can be used at other locations with ease
without incurring significant moving costs.

The disclosure related to accounting estimates are complete and appropriate under the
applicable financial reporting framework.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which applicable
accounting standards in India require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or
disclosed.

We have disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements information relevant to assessing the
possible impact that application of Ind ASs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
will have on the Company’s Ind AS financial statements in the period of initial application
in accordance with Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors, to the extent that this information is known or reasonably estimable.

The effects of uncorrected misstatements, both individually and in the aggregate, to the Ind
AS financial statements as a whole is attached as an Annexure A to the representation letter.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer “Annexure
B

We confirm that the Company has MAT credit of Rs. 700 lacs as at 31 March 2020. Based
on future cash flow projections, the Management is confident of utilization of these credits
within the expiry periods.
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118. Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016

d.

h.

The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

The company has a regular programme of physical verification of fixed assets by which all
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of 2 years. A major portion of the
fixed assets was verified during the year 31 March 2020 in accordance with this
programme. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all immovable properties are held in the name of the company except in
respect of the building on leasehold land located at Vijayawada having a gross book value
of Rs.690.32 lakhs and net book value of Rs. Nil as at March 31, 2020 in respect of which
the title is not in the name of the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

The company has granted loans secured/ unsecured to companies/firms/ Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the
company.

The company has not accepted any deposits.

The company has maintained the cost accounts and records as prescribed under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax,
duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value added tax, GST, cess and other statutory dues have
been regularly deposited by the company with the appropriate authorities. No undisputed
statutory dues payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
tax, Sales tax, Service tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value added tax, GST, cess and
other statutory dues were in arrears as on the last day of the financial year concerned 31
March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There have been no dues of Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, duty of Customs, duty of
Excise, Value added tax, GST which has not been deposited by the company on account of
dispute.

The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial
institution, banks, government or dues to a debenture holder during the year.

The Company has utilized the money raised by way the term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were raised,

No fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, has
been noticed or reported during the year.
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n. Managerial remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013.

0. The Company is not a Nidhi company.

p. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in financial
statements.

q. The Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the preferential allotment or private placement of shares/ fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. The amounts raised, have been used for the
purposes for which the funds were raised.

r. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

s. The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to
the Company.

For and on behalf of
Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

15



whl_“_mn_..m_m Qo e ru e

1030211(q SuiSeuely :uoneuSIsaq
USUIROJ Nqeg Ysowey I(J :PWeN

SJUBWRIDUDUL YT PASSRISIT

%09°C %00°0 %0070 %00°0 %9L" T~ %IS'LT *(Xe) I33J€) SJUNOWE UOT)BILIONUI [BIOUEUL] J0 333u3d13d B SB S)UIUIa)E)SSIU JIPNE PIJIILI0dUN
088°L Sov'y €1L°31 ELT'S 1P9°11 1274 (xe3 a3)38) 53 1 9E)S [EIOUELLY
%09°C %0070 240070 %0070 %9L°1- %CS'LT :(Xe) 210J2q) SJUNOWE SJUIUII)EYS [BIoUELL] JO a8ejuadsad & se SIUIWDIBISSIUI JIpPNE PIIIAI0dU[)
088°L SopY £IL81 €LT'S 911 ShL (XB) 310J2q) SJUNOWE S}OIWIJE)S [eIdUBH] ]
S0T - - - (s00) (<114 (xe1 19)]€) S30U2131J1p Ppne pajsnipeun jo 9ye3a138y

$30UIIJJIp Npne pajsnlpean o J23)J2 XBY,

S0z = = - (s02) $0T (xe} 310J2q) saduUAIJIP JIpne pajsnlpeun jo 2)edaisdy
S0Z - - = = - S0Z = SANTTqeT] Xe) paiiaja(]
- - - - (502) [74 E S0T suadxa Xe) pauiajaq] Jenzaeg sasuadxa xe} paLIagap Jo uoiuFoaas poys| 1
At (1231§ Adupu:
samqui SsEY SIASSY JUaLINTy Limby EEEEM_.U_M”?._ ..___ 8) (3pasd) INEN SNy ekl Jawaepssi jo vondiiasag a1
LI woN LIy JUDLIN) HON > forl ! G i Joad{y :
AUIPIOIIE 123} AM0dU]

(ipaan NP a - 1995d
a3 R1g 03]

STp{e] U1 JonOry

0707 Y2JeIAl 1€ PIPUD Xeak 104
Paj1u 2jeALd [ENdsoH AeRadsumA pue deIpIe) ysawey aq
S)UAWIAIEISSTIAL JIPNY Pa)IdLI00U[) Jo Aremmng




Ymieudig 0T0Z Sunf L[ ‘218

ikt (J@ % Jowan(] Surdeuey uoneUSISAq
\H_./D,n . USROS NqRg YSSUmRY 1( ‘SUWEN

FuawaSOUDW YIIM PISSNISIC]

%09'T 25000 %000 2000 %YL |- %8 LT :(x%3 123J€) HUROIIE WOREHLIOJW [BOUETY JO 35 13d € 5B 5) STUT JIPNE P2JA2LI0dU()
0882 o' €181 LTS 1$9'11 o (xe) 13)5€) [eruBm]
%002 %000 %00'0 250070 %91~ %T5LT (xE3 31032q) enusuy Jo 33 sad © 58 YE)SSIUI JIPNE PIJIFLIOIU(]
088°L £OF ¢ £1L81 £LLS 1p9°11 371 (xu 31053q) feuBuL{
50T . {{<i74] $0T (xe) J0)38) s9suaIoLIp Bipne pAsnipeun jo eIy
- - $33AIIYIP JIpNE pajsnipeun Jo 1939 XB ],
50T (s0z) $0T (x®) 310§3q) s9dUaIAYIP HpNE paysulpenn Jo 3edasddy
S0z £ = = = $0T = saniiqet| Xe; pauajag
- - (sug) SOT = 50T asuadxa w1 pauajag] LLIEER] sasuadxa w1 pagap jo uonmdonas uoys| 1
popaw (199Ys duepg)
b 2L L o S Er] Y U RISSIW
UM woN aLmy JUALIT) woN TRESY A0 fymby ~ URIIRD) 10103 (upasy) ngaq SN0V JoadRi. s Jo uondLasaq a
UIPA0IIW 23455 NWOIU]

SUNE] W LMoLy

0207 LBIA [€ PIPUD Jeak 104
payar aeAUd fepdsoH ANerIdsymy pus J81pIe) gsaumrey Iq
SJEITIAIEISSIA] JIPNY PaIILI0dU[) JO AIpmEmS




Annexure A

Statement of uncorrected misstatements




Annexure B

The following representation is provided in connection with your audit of the internal financial
confrols with reference to financial statements in the audit of Dr. Ramesh Cardiac and
Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited (“the Company”) in conjunction with your audit of the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 for the purpose of
expressing an opinion as to whether the Company had, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed by the Central Government in
accordance with Section 143(10) of the 2013 Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

I. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate and effective internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated and, in
particular, the assertions to you on the internal financial controls.

2. We have performed an evaluation and made an assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the company's internal financial controls.

3. We have not used the procedures performed by you during the audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements as part of the basis for our assessment of the effectiveness
of internal financial controls.

4. Based on the assessment carried out by us and the evaluation of the results of the assessment, we
conclude that the Company has adequate internal financial controls system that was operating
effectively as at the 31 March 2020.

5. There were no instances of fraud resulting in a material misstatement to the company's Ind AS
financial statements and any other fraud that does not result in a material misstatement to the
company's financial statements but involves senior management or management or other
employees who have a significant role in the company's internal financial controls.

6. The control deficiencies identified in the previous engagement of audit of internal financial
controls and communicated to the Company and those charged with governance have been
remediated.

7. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with
or deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

8. We have provided you with:
e All information, such as records and documentation, and other matters that are relevant to
your assessment of internal financial controls;
e Additional information that you have requested from us; and
e Unrestricted access to those within the entity.
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10.

There are no changes in the internal financial controls system from 31 March 2020 till the
date of this representation letter.

The changes to the internal financial controls since 31 March 2020 and the proposed changes

that are under consideration by the Company do not impact our assessment, evaluation and
conclusion of the internal financial controls system as at 31 March 2020.
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